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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS No. 2
to

RFP No. 901420
for

Juvenile Justice Crime Prevention Act (JJCPA) – Community Supervision Program 
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Third Networking/Bidders Conferences held on February 27, 2018
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) No. 2 document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions Submitted and from the third Bidders Conference.
Q1) Page 3 of Addendum No. 4, revised Section B (BACKGROUND/SCOPE) states:
The target population for this program will primarily be youth assigned to Community Supervision, but may also include justice involved youth at the County’s discretion.
For an organization that intends to serve young people in the juvenile justice system, do those services count under this RFP or do the services have to be provided in the community only?
A1) For this RFP and any resulting contracts for program services, Alameda County Probation Department (ACPD) will be referring all youth to the contracted service providers.  ACPD will primarily be referring youth assigned to Community Supervision.  Contractors will not be serving or billing for youth other than those that are referred to them by ACPD.

The reference to “justice involved youth” allows ACPD the flexibility to refer other youth aside from those that are on Community Supervision.
Q2) Page 11 of the RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 2.a.(1) states:
Cognitive Behavior Groups:

Contractor shall provide weekly group intervention services to youth referred to the Contractor by the Probation Officer to address cognitive behavioral changes.
The County has stated that all services shall be based on referrals from ACPD, and that all services must be scalable.  The service category is Cognitive Behavior Groups; so what is a service provider supposed to do if ACPD does not refer enough youth to form a group (e.g., if there is only one referral)?  

A2) Referral numbers have dropped considerably over the years, which is a trend seen across the State for which ACPD has no control over.  Therefore, Bidders are still expected to provide services that can scale from as few as one.  Each bidder will have to demonstrate its ability to scale within their program structure and/or infrastructure.
On page 12 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, under Description of Proposed Program and Services, Item 5(g) states:

Identify any limitations or restrictions of Bidder in providing the services that the County should be aware of in evaluating its Response to this RFP.

If a Bidder believes a single referral is a limitation or restriction, the Bidder should identify it and address per the instruction above. 

Having said that, while overall numbers are down, ACPD does not anticipate a lack of referrals for the Cognitive Behavior Groups service category.  It is the most widely used service, and forming groups should not be a problem.
Q3) Page 17 of RFP, Section G (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS), Item 3.d. states:
Provide written notification regarding the outcome of the services (successful/unsuccessful).  For the duration of the referral, Contractor shall establish and maintain ongoing communication with the youth’s assigned DPO, regarding youth’s progress.
In regards to establishing and maintaining ongoing communication with DPOs, what should the Contractor do if DPOs are not responsive?  Should that be documented?
A3) Open communication is always best.  At time, ACPD will invite the Contractor to staff meetings to give DPOs and service providers the opportunity to meet and communicate about cases, as well as how to effectively communicate going forward (e.g., phone, text, email, in person bi-weekly, monthly, etc.).  But if Contractors are still having problems with unresponsive DPO’s within a reasonable amount of time, then the supervisor should be contacted.
Q4) In the Evaluation Criteria, the points assigned to Cost are computed by dividing the amount of the lowest responsive bid by each bidder’s total proposed cost.  Is the denominator just the cost requested to be paid by Alameda County up to the max per service and service area (the RFP grid)?  Or is the total program cost inclusive of any cost-share or matching funds we identify in the detailed budget?  

A4) Please see Addendum No. 6 for the revised Evaluation Criteria table.  The “Cost” criterion has been removed; cost is now factored into the Budget Detail and Narrative and will be scored as described in the revised table, which includes County and non-County shares (e.g., matching funds).
Q5) The RFP is clear that payments are based on number of youth served. Can the county clarify when payments will be made?  Will payments be made at the time of referral or during or after the close of service?  For example, if the service is a group and the service provider needs five youth to form a group, will the provider only be reimbursed once five youth are referred and engaged and the group in underway, or even completed? Can providers be paid to engage individual youth prior to the group’s beginning?
A5) Based on bid proposals and contract negotiations, payments will be made as youth achieve specific milestones or benchmarks. For example, it is possible a Contractor will enroll youth into a program and begin with an assessment.  Therefore, completing an assessment and providing a report of that assessment to ACPD could be a benchmark resulting in payment (which could be achieved before forming a group); another milestone could be completion of the program (which may or may not be achievable only in a group setting).  Milestone and/or benchmarks may vary from Contractor to Contractor, program by program—it will all be contingent upon bid responses, program structure, and contract negotiations.  In any case, milestones and/or benchmarks must be achieved and verified before payment will be issued.
Q6) Page 3 of Addendum No. 4, Section B (BACKGROUND/SCOPE), states the following:

The data that will be required to report on fall into seven categories:

· Arrest Rate

· Incarceration rate

· Probation violation rate

· Probation completion rate

· Restitution completion rate

· Community service completion rate

· Program completion rate

In addition to these mandated outcomes, ACDP tracks and reports on the following local outcomes:

· Education

· Drug/Alcohol use

· Stress Levels

· Employment

Are Contractors expected to track the Community Supervision outcomes outlined above? Or is ACPD tracking these outcomes? Should bidders propose a process for collaborating with Probation to share data and track outcomes, or is this process built into the contract once awarded?
A6) ACPD is responsible for tracking the above-referenced outcomes.  Contractors, however, are responsible for tracking the performance measures outlined in the RFP as applicable.
Q7) The RFP outlines the bid submittal process, stating that bids must be uploaded through the online portal and attached as an electronic (PDF) copy.  A hard copy submission is not mentioned.  However, page 9 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 1 states:  
Table of Contents:  Bid responses shall include a table of contents listing the individual sections of the proposal and their corresponding page numbers.  Tabs should separate each of the individual sections.

Is a hard copy of the proposal with tabs separating the individual sections required? How is attaching an electronic copy in the online portal different from uploading a bid through the portal?
A7) Bids must be submitted electronically via the County’s Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal (or EZSourcing Portal).  Bidders will upload a PDF of their bid response into the portal.  For this RFP, attaching an electronic copy in the online portal is the same as uploading a bid through the portal.

No hard copy proposals will be accepted; nor will any electronic submissions (e.g., email, facsimile, flash drive, etc.) be accepted other than upload via the Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal.  In lieu of tabs that would normally separate sections in a hard copy, the County is requesting the “separator pages” be included before individual sections of the electronic (PDF) copy.

Q8) Do lead prime Bidders have to provide Fiscal Management Capacity information (page 13 of REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet) for subcontractors and/or collaborating partners as well?
A8) No.  At this time, the County is only requiring Fiscal Management Capacity documentation for the lead prime Bidder.
Q9) At the top of page 11 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet (Item 4. Table of Key Personnel), it states:
If a Bidder collaborates with any other partners or subcontractors, Bidder shall identify subcontractors, subcontractor qualifications, and how they plan to work together. Bidder(s) shall identify any existing agreements or MOUs between the bidder(s) and proposed collaborator(s). 

In some cases, there may already be existing MOUs between collaborators.  If there are no existing MOUs, does the County want Letters of Commitment specific to this proposal? 
A9) The County would like to see any existing MOUs between the lead prime Bidder and any collaborating partners.  If no MOUs currently exist, the County would like Bidders to provide Letters of Commitment specifically in support to this RFP.
Q10) Aside from the Table of Key Personnel, are there any other areas where the County would like specific information regarding collaborating partners and/or subcontractors?  
A10) The RFP outlines all the necessary requirements to be included in a Bidder’s proposal.  If the lead prime Bidder is part of a collaboration of vendors, the County does expect proposals to reflect, describe, and detail the role(s) of all collaborators where appropriate in the bid response or other required submittals.
Q11) Does the County only want references from the lead prime Bidder?  Or should references also be provided for collaborating partners and/or subcontractors?
A11) The County would like references from the lead prime Bidder AND any collaborating partners and/or subcontractors.  Please see the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response packet in Addendum No. 6 for further details.  
Q12) Is the Contractor required to serve all youth referred to the program?  Or can the Contractor screen youth out due to not being a good fit?
A12) Referrals for contracted services will come from ACPD.  These youth will have already been screened and assessed by a DPO for referral suitability.  Once the youth has been referred to a program and if the Contractor determines the youth is not a good fit, the Contractor should circle back and communicate with the DPO to determine the next steps.  Again, Contractors are only paid for reaching milestones; so if a youth is transferred out of a program before any milestone is reached, no payment will be made.
Q13) On page 1 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, the third bullet point states:
Bidders shall not modify the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet or any other County-provided document.

Are Bidders expected to fill in the Bid Response Packet, or submit a completely separate document with an itemized list in alignment with the Table of Contents from the Bid Response Packet?
A13) The County prefers that Bidders fill in the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet “as is” in its current format, particularly the REVISED Budget Form(s).  Additional required submittals should be created separately, as appropriate, and included as part of the Bidder’s proposal as described in the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.  

Bidders should NOT modify the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, including the REVISED Budget Form(s).  In the past, the County has seen some Bidders try to alter the Budget Form or propose their own Bid/Budget Form—this is not allowed.   

Q14) The most updated bid response packet has a bunch of text crossed out, other text added in yellow highlight. Should Bidders leave all of that as is and fill in our information with any type of highlight, bold, font, etc. to distinguish?  Or simply add in as plain text?  Or will there be a clean, updated Bid Response Packet available for download that Bidders can use? 
A14) Addendum No. 6 will include the most recently updated REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, which has been cleaned up a bit.  The County prefer that Bidders fill in the newly REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet “as is” (including any highlights, strikethroughs, bold fonts, etc.).  Bidders can fill it in using plain text or any other text that is legible and easy to read.
Q15) The County stated that for any service area bid on, the Bidder must service the area in its entirety (e.g., all of Oakland).  If a Bidder has an office in a particular part of Oakland, is the County saying that the Bidder should not submit a bid based on the number of potential youth in the surrounding zip codes?  Or is that still acceptable?

A15) For any service area bid on, the Bidder must be able to service the entire area.  Additionally, Bidders must have a facility (or facilities), in Alameda County in the service area(s) for which they are bidding in order to adequately conduct all meetings with youth and/or their families.  

In the example above, a Bidder with an office in a particular part of Oakland that intends to bid on Service Area 1 (i.e., Oakland) must be able to service all youth in the Oakland area.  The Bidder cannot choose to only service those zip codes nearest the office/facility, nor should the Bidder consider surrounding zip codes that are not within Service Area 1/Oakland.  
The County would like to remind Bidders that, for this RFP and any resulting contracts, Contractors will only be serving youth that are referred by ACPD specifically to these contracted programs.  
Q16) Is there any inherent disadvantage against an individual submitting a bid to provide services (e.g., outpatient drug services) rather than an organization?  For example, if a licensed psychologist specializing in serving youth with substance use disorders submitted a bid as an individual versus being part of a larger non-profit organization, would there be any disadvantage? Does the County suggest individuals network with an organization or is submitting as an individual acceptable? 
A16) The County cannot advise on how a vendor should bid (e.g., as an individual or as part of a collaboration); that is a choice that each vendor must make.  The RFP, however, is not designed to show any preference or bias towards bidders that are individuals versus single organizations versus collaborations.  All bid responses will be graded on the criteria as described in the RFP.  If an individual submits a bid that is ranked the highest, then it is possible for an individual to receive an award.  
Q17) In the discussion of scalability of program costs, the County has emphasized that Bidders should have a sustainable funding model that does not put staffing and capacity to perform services at risk.  Should that be expressed in the Budget Detail and Narrative section?  What kind of information is the County looking for to be assured of this sustainability?  Is proportionally lower fixed costs and higher program costs an example of evidence of this (e.g., if more of the Fixed Costs are cost-shared or covered by matching funds, leaving the County-requested support to be more focused on Program Costs)?  Does the RFP indicate anywhere how a sustainable infrastructure/funding model will be evaluated or scored?
A17) As stated on page 6 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet (REVISED Budget Form):
BIDDER MUST PROVIDE A PROGRAM AND BUDGET DETAIL THAT WILL SCALE TO THE NUMBER OF YOUTH SERVED (WHETHER ONLY ONE YOUTH IS SERVED OR 200 YOUTH ARE SERVED) AND STILL ALLOW THE BIDDER’S ORGANIZATION AND ITS PROGRAM TO BE SUSTAINABLE

Bidders must determine on their own how to best demonstrate in their bid proposal that their program(s) is scalable and sustainable.  However, as alluded to above, a program and budget detail should be provided—at minimum—that describe how this will be accomplished.  Bid responses will be graded on how well each Bidder describes and/or explains how its program(s) is scalable and sustainable.  For more information on how bid responses will be evaluated, please see the revised Evaluation Criteria Table found on pages 2 – 6 of Addendum No. 6.
Q18) Do youth in these programs have to be restricted to Probation youth only? Or can it be a broader group that includes Probation youth?
A18) All youth serviced under this RFP must be referred to the Contractor by ACPD specifically for the programs described in this RFP.  

In terms of the programs themselves, the County strongly advises against mixing youth on probation with non-probation youth.
Q19) On page 8 of Addendum No. 4, the County made a revision to Section J (EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE), Item J, and added the following paragraph:

In addition, if there are any gaps in service categories and/or services areas, the County reserve its right to select from bidders that were evaluated in order to cover such gaps.

Can the County please provide more clarification on what is meant by this?
A19) The County wants to ensure all service area are covered with all program.  For example, if no vendors bid on Cognitive Behavioral Groups in Service Area 4 (North County), the County reserves its right to determine if Service Area 4 can be serviced by the winning Bidder in Service Area 1 (Oakland), assuming it is a good fit.  If it is not a good fit, the County will select another Bidder that was evaluated and determine if services can be provided.  

Q20) If no one bids in Service Area 3, does the County anticipate that an Oakland bidder could be assigned to Service Area 3? 
A20) Ultimately, the County will have to make sure that, in these instances, the selected provider is able to provide adequate services and is a good fit.  The County would most likely take certain factors into consideration, such as if the Bidder has an office in the Service Area and even if the Bidder has the capacity to serve additional youth. 
If a service provider cannot be secured, the County may also elect to re-bid in just that Service Area.  
Q21) Are Bidders required to have a business license in the Service Area that they propose to bid on?  
A21) No.  Bidders are only required to have a facility or facilities, in Alameda County in the service area(s) for which they are bidding, to adequately conduct all meetings with youth and/or their families

Q22) Currently, Delinquency Prevention Network (DPN) providers have been working to identify youth who are dealing with marijuana in the Prop 64 marijuana citation program; and officers can refer such youth to DPN providers for diversion.  Would or could these youth count under the Outpatient Drug Treatment Services program in this RFP? 
A22) DPN referrals can come from several sources (e.g., schools, police departments, etc.).  For this RFP and any resulting contracts, Contractors will only be serving youth that are referred by ACPD specifically to these contracted programs.  Youth that are referred through the DPN for diversion services should not be counted towards Outpatient Drug Treatment Services.
Q23) Alameda County Behavioral Health Care Services (BHCS) currently has Substance Use Disorder (SUD) programs that services adolescents; BHCS also has recently issued an RFP for SUD Services.  As a contracted SUD provider with BHCS, will this RFP from ACPD pose any conflicts with BHCS’ programs, particularly when it comes to referral of youth?  
For example, under this RFP, ACPD is asking for Outpatient Drug Treatment Services in South County that can serve 50 youth in a year.  BHCS’ RFP requires that approximately 93 client are served each year in South County.  Is the intent for ACPD to have an outpatient drug treatment services program that is separate from BHCS’ SUD program?  Will ACPD’s Probation Officers stop referring to BHCS’ program?  The vast majority of youth referred under BHCS’ SUD program comes for ACPD Probation Officers (with whom long-standing relationships have been formed); and this RFP is strictly Probation referrals only. Therefore, it seems unlikey that metrics/goals for both programs can or will be met—especially with the potential reduction in numbers due to Prop 64.  Will BHCS’s SUD programs get less referrals—or might BHCS’ program be cut-off—if Probation Officers will now be referring to only programs resulting from this RFP?
A23) ACPD does not have any control over BHCS’ RFPs or existing SUD programs.  The Outpatient Drug Treatment Services programs requested in this RFP have never been solicited by ACPD before.  With laws recently passed, ACPD goal is to get these services opened up to more youth within Alameda County.  The Outpatient Drug Treatment Services programs requested in this RFP should be treated separately from BHCS’ SUD programs.  ACPD cannot determine if there will be any conflicts—referrals or otherwise—between the two programs.  

ACPD does not have the specific knowledge of BHCS’ programs or RFP, nor any control over them, to determine if there will be any conflicts.  This RFP, however, is for Probation youth under Community Supervision, and the only referral source is ACPD.  A diagnosis is also not needed to refer a youth under this RFP.  Ultimately, if a Bidder is awarded both an ACPD contract and a BHCS contract, the contracted Bidder may need to discuss how to best meet the goals of each contract with the respective agency/department, without supplanting of funds.
Please note, that for this RFP, there is no longer a requirement to service 50 youth in South County under Outpatient Drug Treatment Services category.  Using the REVISED Budget Form(s), Bidders are required to indicate which service categories per service are being bid on; and for each service category/service area, Bidders must indicate the cost of their program and how many youth they are capable of serving.  There is no exactly a “goal” to be met in terms of the overall number of youth to be served, at least not in payment terms.  The County cannot guarantee the number of youth that will be referred to any Contractor, which is why the County is asking for a scalable and sustainable program.
Q24) It is possible for multiple regions to be awarded for this RFP?
A24) It is possible that more than one Contractor will be awarded to a service area/region.  Likewise, it is also possible for a Contractor to be awarded more than one services area/region.
Q25) If more than one Contactor is awarded to the same service area/region, is there any expectation for coordination between the Contractors?
A25) No.
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